
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS 

EASTERN DIVISION 

) 
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, 

1 
Plaintiff, ) 

Case No. 04C 6901 
v. 

) 

Levin 
NEVADA, et al., 

Defendants. 

STIPULATED ORDER FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION 
AND FINAL JUDGMENT AS TO DEFENDANTS DIVERSE MARKETING 

s GROUP. INC.. DIVERSE MARKETING GROUP. LLC AND MARK C. AYOUB 

WHEREAS Plaintiff Federal Trade Commission ("Commission" or "FTC") filed a 

Complaint For Injunctive And Other Equitable Relief (the "Complaint") on October 27,2004, 

pursuant to Sections 13(b) and 19 of the Federal Trade Commission Act ("FTC Act"), 15 U.S.C. 

59 53(b) and 



the parties and for other cause appearing, it is ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED as follows: 

FINDINGS 

1. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter and the parties pursuant to 28 

U.S.C. 55 1331 and 1337(a), and 15 U.S.C. 8 53(b). 

2. The Complaint states a claim upon which relief may be granted against Defendants, 

under Sections 13@) and 19 of the Federal Trade Commission Act 



7. This Order resolves only claims against the named Defendants and does not preclude 

the Commission from initiating further action or seeking any remedy against any other persons or 

entities, including but not limited to persons or entities who may be subject to portions of this Order 

by virtue of actions taken in concert or participation with Defendants, and persons or entities in any 

type of indemnification or contractual relationship with Defendants. 

8. Entry of this Order is in the public interest. 

DEFINITIONS 

1. "Assisting others" means: (1) performing customer service functions including, 

but not limited to, receiving or responding to consumer complaints, (2) providing, or arranging 

for the provision of, names of potential customers; (3) performing marketing services of any 

kind; (4) acting as an officer or director of a business entity; or (5) providing credit or debit card 

account 



5. b‘Document'' is synonymous in meaning and equal in scope to the same term as 

defined in Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 34(a), and includes writings, drawings, graphs, charts, 

photographs, audio and video recordings, computer records, and other data compilations from 

which infomation can be obtained and translated, if necessary, through detection devices into 

reasonably usable form. A draft or non-identical copy is a separate document within the meaning 

of this term. 

6. '%#aterial" means likely to affect a person's choice of, or conduct regarding, 

goods or services. 

7. "Person" means a natural person, organization, or other legal entity, including a 



B. Representing that "FuelMAX," "Super FuelMAX," "Fuel Saver Pro," or any other 

substantially similar product, causes a substantial reduction in emissions; 

C. Making any representation about the perfonnance, efficacy, or safety of any 

product unless, at the time of making such representation, Defendants possess and rely upon 

competent and reliable scientific evidence that substantiates the representation; 

D. Misrepresenting any other fact material to a consumer's 



receive actual notice of this Order, are hereby restrained and enjoined from violating, or assisting 

others in violating, the provisions contained in Sections 5 and 6 of the Controlling the Assault of 

Non-Solicited Pornography and Marketing Act of 2003 ("CAN-SPAM Act"), 15 U.S.C. $5 7704 

and 7705, as currently promulgated or as it may hereafter be amended, or any rule, regulation, or 

requirement adopted pursuant thereto, 



may apply any remaining funds for such other equitable relief (including 



against Defendants, and in favor of the Commission, in the amount of $292,000, which shall 

become immediately due and payable, less any amount already paid. 

Provided, however, that in all other respects, this judgment shall remain in full force and 

effect, unless otherwise ordered by the Court; providedfurther, 



1. obtaining discovery from any person, without further leave of Court, using 

the procedures prescribed by Fed. R. Civ. 



(b) Any changes in employment status (including self-employment) 

within ten (10) days of such change. Such notice shall include the 

name and address of each business the defendant is affiliated with 

or employed by, or performs services for; a statement of the nature 

of the business, and a statement of the defendant's duties and 

responsibilities in connection with the business or employment; 

and 

(c) Any changes in the defendant's name or use of any aliases or 

fictitious names; and 

2. Defendants shall notify the Commission of any changes in corporate 

structure or any business that Defendant Mark C. Ayoub directly or 

indirectly controls, or has an ownership 



B. One hundred eighty (180) days after the date of entry of this Order, Defendants 

Diverse Marketing Group, Inc., Diverse Marketing Group, LLC and Mark C. Ayoub shall 

provide a written report to the Commission, sworn to under penalty of pe jury, setting forth in 

detail the manner and form in which each Defendant has complied and is complying with this 

Order. This report shall include, but not be limited to: 

1. For Defendant Mark C. Ayoub: 

(a) his then-current residence address, mailing address, and telephone 

numbers; 

(b) his then-current employment and business addresses and 

telephone numbers, a description of the business activities of each 

such employer or business, and his title and responsibilities, for 

each such employer or business; and 

(c) Any other changes required to be reported under subparagraph A 

of this Section. 

2. For all Defendants: 

(a) A copy of each acknowledgment of receipt of this Order obtained 

by Defendants pursuant to Section X; and 

(b) Any other changes required to be reported under subparagraph A 

of this Section. 

C. For the purposes of this Order, Defendants shall, unless otherwise directed by the 

Commission's authorized representatives, mail all written notifications to the Commission to: 



Federal Trade Commission 
Director, Midwest Region 
55 East Monroe Street, Suite 1860 
Chicago, Illinois 60603 
Re: FTC v. International Research and Development; 

D. For purposes of the compliance reporting required by this Section, the 

Commission is authorized to communicate directly with Defendant, unless Defendant indicates 

that he is represented by counsel and provides the name and address of such counsel to the 

Commission. 

M. 



X. DISTRIBUTION OF 



D. Defendants must secure a signed and dated statement acknowledging receipt of 

the Order, within thirty days of delivery, from all persons receiving a copy of the Order pursuant 

to this Section X. 

XI. REXORD KIEEPING PROVISIONS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for a period of six (6) years from the date of entry of 

this Order, in connection with any business in which Defendant Mark C. Ayoub is the majority 

owner of the business or directly or indirectly manages or controls the business, and where (2) 

the business is engaged in, or assists others in engaging in, the offering for sale or sale of any 

product or service over the Internet, Defendants and their agents, officers, corporations, 

successors, and assigns, and those persons in active concert or participation with him who 

receive actual notice of this Order by personal service or otherwise, are hereby restrained and 

enjoined from failing to create and retain the following records: 

A. Accounting records that reflect the cost of goods or services 



D. Complaint and refund requests (whether received directly, indirectly or through 

any third party), and any responses to those complaints or refund requests; and 

E. Copies of all sales scripts, training materials, advertisements, or other marketing 

materials. 

XII. COOPERATION WITH COMMISSION COUNSEL 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendant Mark C. Ayoub, in connection with this 

action or any concurrent or subsequent investigations related to or associated with the 

transactions or the occurrences that are the subject of the Complaint, cooperate in good faith with 

the Commission's reasonable requests for documents and testimony. Upon written notice 

Defendant Mark C. Ayoub shall: (1) appear at such places and times as the Commission 

reasonably requests for interviews, conferences, pretrial discovery, review of documents, and for 

such other matters, after written notice; and (2) produce such documents and information in a 

manner as may be 



and II of the Commission's Complaint; provided, huwever, that Defendants may disclose such 

information to a law enforcement agency, to the Commission, or as required by any law, 

regulation, or court order. 

XIV. E E S  AND COSTS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that each party to this Order hereby agrees to bear its own 

costs and attorneys' fees incurred in connection with this action. 

XV. RETENTION OF JURISDICTION 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Court shall retain jurisdiction over this matter 

for all purposes. 



STIPULATED AND AGREED TO BY: 

FOR THE PLAINTFF: 

f / 
Dated 

Steven M. Wernikoff 
Federal Trade Commission 
55 East Monroe Street, Suite 1860 
Chicago, Illinois 60603 
(3 12) 960-5634 [Telephone] 
(3 12) 960-5600 [Facsimile] 

Attorney for Plaintiff 
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION 

FOR THE DEFENDANTS: 

Dated 
Mark C. Ayoub, on behalf of Defendant 
DIVERSE MARKETING GROUP, INC. 

Dated 
Mark C. Ayoub, on behalf of Defendant 
DIVERSE MARKETING GROUP, LLC 

Dated 
Mark C. Ayoub, individually 

IT IS SO ORDERED, this day of kk,'~ ,2005 

Honorable Willi 
United States 


